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GUEST LEGISLATORS PRESENT: 

 
None 
 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
Dave Ziegler, Committee Policy Analyst 
Dan Yu, Committee Counsel 
Andrew Diss, Committee Manager 
Pat Blackburn, Committee Recording Secretary 
Sally Stoner, Committee Assistant 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
 
James Campos, Commissioner, Consumer Affairs Division, 

Department of Business and Industry 
Anthony Ruggiero, Chief Investigator, Consumer Affairs Division, 

Department of Business and Industry 
Nancyann Leeder, Nevada Attorney for Injured Workers, Office of 

the Nevada Attorney for Injured Workers, Department of 
Business and Industry 

Bob Ostrovsky, representing Employers Insurance Group, Reno, 
Nevada 

George A. Ross, representing Nevada Self Insurers Association, Las 
Vegas, Nevada 

Danny Thompson, Executive Secretary-Treasurer, Nevada State 
American Federation of Labor-Congress of Industrial 
Organizations, Henderson, Nevada 

Jack Jeffrey, representing Laborers International Union of North 
America Local 872, Las Vegas, Nevada 

Craig Michie, Private Citizen, Henderson, Nevada 
Donald E. Jayne, representing Public Agency Compensation Trust, 

Carson City, Nevada 
Charles R. Nort, representing Exber Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada, and 

Young Electric Sign Co., Salt Lake City, Utah 
 

Chairman Conklin: 
[The roll was called and a quorum was present.] 
 
I would like to remind the members and the audience that Rule 21 of the 
Standing Rules of the Committee is, if you are going to have a conversation 
with someone other than a member of this Committee, please leave the dais out 
of respect for the other members, so that they are not overhearing your 
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conversation and the conversation they are having is not being overheard as 
well. 
 
Assembly Bill 22:  Revises provisions relating to certain trade practices. 

(BDR 52-428) 
 
We will open the hearing on Assembly Bill 22.  James Campos, welcome to the 
Committee on Commerce and Labor. 
 
James Campos, Commissioner, Consumer Affairs Division, Department of 

Business and Industry: 
Assembly Bill 22 is a remake of a bill that we set forth last session.  This is a 
bill that is needed by the state for an individual to be registered.  It provides 
Consumer Affairs a fining mechanism that we have never had in the past.  It is 
a bill that allows us to apply certain laws to facilitate our duties in a more 
efficient manner. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Is that your testimony? 
 
James Campos: 
It is a much needed bill because, in this economy, we have more individuals that 
are acting deceptively in the business environment.  It is because of this 
growing concern that we need an enforcement mechanism.  Consumer Affairs 
traditionally has implemented an Assurance of Discontinuance (AOD) whereby 
we request that an individual stop doing an action, they agree to sign off, and 
that would be the end of it.  This bill would allow us to fine these individuals at 
the beginning and allow a faster remedy for the negative actions to the 
consumers of Nevada.  I am open for questions and concerns regarding this 
matter. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Who exactly is supposed to register with you?  Is there a certain class of 
business that registers with you, or does this apply to all businesses?   
 
James Campos: 
We have six separate industries that register with us; telemarketing, credit 
service organizations, sellers of travel and tour brokers, health clubs, dance 
studios, and discount buying clubs. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Are they currently licensed with your division, or are they licensed somewhere 
else?   
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James Campos: 
They are licensed through our Division.  
 
Assemblywoman Kirkpatrick: 
What was the last business you mentioned? 
 
James Campos: 
Discount buying clubs such as Costco and Sam’s Club. 
 
Assemblywoman Kirkpatrick: 
Why are we changing it from the Consumer Affairs Division of the Department 
of Business and Industry to just the Division?  Are you going to include different 
parts of other industries?  I am not sure what the change is for.  It is referred to 
throughout the bill.  Can you explain whether the money goes back to the 
General Fund or stays with the Division?   
 
James Campos: 
All fines would go to the General Fund.  Nothing we receive in Consumer Affairs 
stays with us.  I will get back to your first question concerning the use of 
Consumer Affairs Division in the bill. 
 
Assemblyman Settelmeyer: 
What was the number of the bill last year?  How much money do you estimate, 
based on last year’s violations, this will generate for the coming year? 
 
James Campos: 
We do not have a specific number for the fining mechanism generation.  We 
have received up to $15,000 in the past.  
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Mr. Settelmeyer, it is Senate Bill No.18 of the 74th Legislative Session.  We had 
it, and it died in the Conference Committee.  Are there any other questions for 
Mr. Campos? 
 
Assemblyman Horne: 
Can you give us the history of how this has been augmented to such an extent 
that we are going to fine someone for failing to do something and labeling it as 
deceptive, as opposed to an oversight?   
 
James Campos: 
It is twofold.  If you remember from S.B. No.18 of the 74th Legislative Session, 
the fining mechanism started at $100.  We were asked to increase the fine to 
$500.  Chapter 598 of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), defines deceptive trade 
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practice, which is a broad statute.  If a company is involved in a deceptive 
practice, this bill will give us the mechanism to stop it right away instead of 
going through the lengthy process which we call Assurance of Discontinuance 
(AOD) while consumers are continuing to be deceived.  We give the business a 
warning right away by imposing a fine of $500.  If we see it again, the fine is 
$1500; the third time it is $3000.  This is a mechanism we never had in the 
past.  Some people have often said that we are a toothless agency.   
 
Assemblyman Horne: 
My concern is the initial finding, when they fail to register, that they are labeled 
as conducting deceptive trade practices.  If you are labeled as a company with 
deceptive trade practices, is that going to tarnish your insurance premiums or 
licensing?  It seems problematic that, if a company has failed to register as an 
oversight, now they are labeled as having conducted deceptive trade practices.   
 
James Campos: 
I am calling up my Chief Investigator if you do not mind. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Mr. Campos, before your investigator comes up, I would like to ask Mr. Yu or 
Mr. Ziegler a question.  Are there similar provisions where not being licensed is 
considered a deceptive trade practice? 
 
Dan Yu, Committee Counsel: 
I believe the only provisions that call for such measures would be in NRS 598. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
That would be this chapter only, so other divisions do not have this provision? 
 
Dan Yu: 
Yes. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
James Campos, would you like your investigator to come up to address 
Mr. Horne’s concern? 
 
Anthony Ruggiero, Chief Investigator, Consumer Affairs Division, Department of 

Business and Industry: 
The deceptive trade practice lies within the fact that members of those 
industries that are licensed by the Nevada Consumer Affairs Division portray to 
the citizens of the state that they are licensed.  Section 2 finds them in violation 
if they have not registered.  In addition to their having to register with the 
Nevada Consumer Affairs Division, they also post bonds or surety to protect the 
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citizens of the state from a business potentially going out of business and the 
consumer not having any recourse.  If a business is a seller of travel or a tour 
broker and it goes out of business tomorrow, we have the surety bond that 
remains in effect for approximately one year after it goes out of business.  That 
is the safeguard in case a business goes under.  If it fails to register and fails to 
bond so that the safeguard is never in place, then we can perform compliance 
checks.   
 
Most of the industries that have licensees do the same thing.  In the past, the 
only thing the Consumer Affairs Division has been able to do is fine $100 per 
violation.  There was never an increase in the fines.  Commissioner Campos is 
trying to address this situation and let these businesses know that, if they fail to 
license, register, and bond, these fines will be imposed.   
 
Chairman Conklin: 
We would like to get clarification on section 2 where it labels this action as a 
deceptive trade practice and then turns this over to all of NRS 598, which has 
some enhanced penalties.  Mr. Yu, can you synopsize this for the Committee? 
 
Dan Yu: 
The proposed enforcement mechanism would subject any person who fails to 
register to the general provisions set forth in NRS 598.0999, which establishes 
the different civil and criminal penalties involved for a deceptive trade practice.  
The failure to comply with a court order or injunction that is issued by the 
Division for failure to register would result in the penalty of $10,000 for each 
violation.  Willfully engaging in a deceptive trade practice would result in a 
$5,000 penalty.  The first offense would be considered a misdemeanor 
conviction.  A second offense would be a gross misdemeanor conviction, and a 
third offense would be a category D felony. 
 
Assemblywoman Gansert: 
I was wondering about any notification that a business is in violation versus it 
will be in violation if it has not registered.  Are you providing a notice to indicate 
that in ten days the business will be in violation? 
 
James Campos: 
When someone comes in to register with us, we give a packet of information 
and an amount of time to do this. 
 
Anthony Ruggiero: 
All of the businesses are made aware of all the regulations that deal with their 
particular business up front.  When Consumer Affairs performs the compliance 
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checks and a business is not licensed, the business has already been given a 
notice. 
 
Assemblywoman Gansert: 
How long after they have been given their business license in the packet do 
they have to register? 
 
Anthony Ruggiero: 
They have to do it before they can start their business.  They have to register 
with the Consumers Affairs Division and bond with us before they can be a 
seller of travel. 
 
Assemblywoman Gansert: 
Are you saying that they can get a license even though they have not 
registered?  Is there a way you can make it so a business cannot get a license 
unless it is registered? 
 
Anthony Ruggiero: 
Not unless we change the language of the municipal codes or any pertinent 
state language. 
 
Assemblyman Anderson: 
Is there a time frame for the appeal when someone has filed a complaint? 
 
Anthony Ruggiero: 
If there is one infraction and another one comes afterwards, then we reserve 
the right to carry it forward for the second infraction. 
 
Assemblyman Anderson: 
If a business had an infraction ten years ago, paid the fine, and then received a 
second infraction for another area, would that be their second notification even 
though there had been a time lag? 
 
James Campos: 
Ten years is an aggressive time lag.  I would assume in that case that it is in my 
discretion with Consumer Affairs to either (1) carry forward and determine that 
it is a second violation or (2) determine that we will fine you for the first 
violation.   
 
Assemblyman Anderson: 
How vigorous are you currently in collecting fines and other assessments in 
your division? 
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Anthony Ruggiero: 
We try to stay as vigorous as possible.  Most of our investigators are in their 
offices doing cases, so we try to be as proactive as possible given our current 
resources. 
 
Assemblyman Anderson: 
Who is collecting the fines, and are they actually being collected? 
 
Anthony Ruggiero: 
If we enter into an AOD, the business pays the fines right away.  There are 
many incidences where businesses are no longer in existence, so no one shows 
up at the “order to show cause” hearings.  When a penalty is assessed against 
that business, we request that the Attorney General’s Office go to the district 
court and get a judgment.  Trying to enforce a judgment against a business that 
is no longer here is a big challenge. 
 
Assemblyman Anderson: 
Is there a mechanism in place to handle a business that goes out of business 
and then comes back under a new name? 
 
Anthony Ruggiero:  
If they are one of our registered businesses, we perform a thorough check on all 
the certificates of incorporation and business licenses to determine if that 
person is trying to register under a different name.  That is why this bill is very 
important.  If a business fails to register and bond with our agency, we can 
refer to section 4 and charge $500 for the first violation, $1500 for the second, 
and $3000 for the third. 
 
Our investigators do the same due diligence with businesses that are not 
registered.  If they are the same company, we take them to an “order to show 
cause hearing” and have an independent hearing officer make that decision.  We 
try to safeguard as much as possible from deceptive businesses doing this type 
of act. 
 
Assemblyman Settelmeyer: 
Is there a reason that the fines have been increased so much from the bill two 
years ago? 
 
James Campos: 
I was never given a reason. 
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Chairman Conklin: 
The Governor’s budget does not include a Consumer Affairs Division anymore.  
Have you given that any consideration when you put the bill forward? 
 
James Campos: 
This bill was put forward before the Governor’s recommendations.   
 
Anthony Ruggiero: 
If another agency assumes the responsibility of Consumer Affairs, we feel this 
type of fining mechanism should still be in place so we can protect the 
consumers.  To answer Assemblyman Settelmeyer’s question, these fines were 
proposed because they are in-line with other state agencies that license 
businesses.   
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Could you please repeat the six industries you mentioned earlier? 
 
Anthony Ruggiero: 
Telemarketing, credit service organizations, sellers of travel, tour brokers and 
operators, health clubs and dance studios, and discount buying clubs. 
 
Assemblywoman Buckley: 
We had asked specifically, if your office was eliminated, who would perform the 
other services.  The response we received on February 4, 2009, from the 
Department of Business and Industry, Office of the Director, was that one area 
that could be moved to Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) was auto repair 
and auto sales.  Last session, I had a bill to do that, and James Campos and the 
Governor’s Office opposed that bill.  After session, James Campos came to me 
and said, “I was wrong; you were right.  We probably should have done that.”  
And then four months ago, before session, you came to me and said, “No, 
Consumer Affairs should do it.”  And now in this latest letter, it says DMV 
should do it.  What is your opinion today? 
 
James Campos: 
When I became Commissioner two years ago, I felt strongly that Consumer 
Affairs should handle those services.  I was going to do the best I could to 
reorganize to put the proper resources forward.  Later, I did admit to you that, 
because of all the work we had and the increasing trade practices in the state, 
we were inundated and had only one investigator dedicated to this.  Without the 
proper resources, Madam Speaker, I would see it fit better elsewhere.   
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Assemblywoman Buckley: 
Have you submitted my bill draft, or is the Governor’s Office going to submit 
the bill draft that I sponsored last time? 
 
James Campos: 
That is a question I have to pose to the Director of Business and Industry. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Are there any other questions? 
 
Assemblywoman Kirkpatrick: 
Section 7, subsection 2, addresses that the use of trademarks is exempt from 
the provisions that you are trying to change.  Does this include the Costco 
stores and large companies you are trying to get?  If they have a trademark, 
what small groups are we going after?  I believe we can work with local 
government.  I do not remember being told that I need to go to the Consumer 
Affairs Division to get a business license.  Unfortunately, I think we, as 
agencies, need to work better with each other, rather than implementing fines.  
 
Anthony Ruggiero: 
Subsection 2, within section 7, deals with compliance with the orders and rules 
of federal, state, and local government agencies.  A specific example concerning 
the trademark, certification and collective mark, and trade name is the “truth in 
music” law from Senate Bill No. 53 of the 74th Legislative Session.  This bill 
deals with groups or performers who present themselves as the original group.  
Unless they hold that trademark or certification, they are not allowed to perform 
as the original group.  In that situation, we have a law to deal with that 
specifically.  That is a deceptive trade practice.   
 
Unless we have a law like that, it is not our jurisdiction but would be the federal 
agency’s jurisdiction.  The Patent and Trademark Office would deal with this 
type of abuse or failure to comply with the federal regulations.  This particular 
section does not apply to those types of violations.  I hope that answers your 
question with that specific section. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Is there anyone else wishing to get on the record for A.B. 22?  Then we will 
close the hearing on A.B. 22 at this time and bring it back to the Committee and 
see what materializes. 
 
We will now open the hearing for Assembly Bill 24. 
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Assembly Bill 24:  Revises provisions governing claims for compensation under 

industrial insurance. (BDR 53-423) 
 
Nancyann Leeder, Nevada Attorney for Injured Workers, Office of the Nevada 

Attorney for Injured Workers, Department of Business and Industry: 
We are appointed to represent injured workers in litigation in order to help them 
receive workers’ compensation benefits.  Subsequent to submitting 
Assembly Bill 24, I had a meeting with Mr. Ostrovsky and Mr. Ross, which 
resulted in the proposed amendments which have been circulated to the 
Committee (Exhibit C). 
 
Section 7 was changed by inserting a new subsection 3 in section 1 of the bill, 
which is Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 616C.050.  The problem we are 
seeking to correct concerns the injured worker who is not being evaluated for 
permanent partial disability.  By inserting the language in existing section 1 
means that it is more preventative than what I had originally proposed in section 
7, which was after the fact.   
 
Section 2 of the bill addresses NRS 616C.065.  Where I have “…” after a 
number, it means I am not changing it from the language in A.B. 24. 
 
Section 3 is a minor change to NRS 616C.090.  The concern with subsection 4 
was that it seemed to presuppose approval.  Therefore, the proposed 
amendment says “or reasonable disapproval,” but at the end of that paragraph, 
it defines what might be reasonable.  The insurer must articulate the reason for 
the disapproval if the change of physician is in fact being disapproved.   
 
Section 4 of the bill is more evidentiary.  The existing language in NRS Chapter 
616 states that evidentiary rule NRS 50.315 must be complied with, and it does 
not refer to NRS 50.310 or NRS 50.320.  Those are three different types of 
evidence.  In all three incidences, an affidavit can be used in lieu of an actual 
person testifying to the requisite proof.  I am not proposing to change that.  The 
affidavit would still be available to “prove up,” whether the issue was chain of 
custody, that the test was accurately done, or that the machine was properly 
calibrated by a person trained to do that.  All of those things could be proved by 
affidavit, but they would in fact have to be proved by the affidavit of the person 
who knows.  The current situation only addresses one of those types of 
knowledge. 
 
Section 5 says that if any benefit is going to be restricted for a worker who was 
injured but who is not going to be put back to work by the injury employer, then 
the restriction has to be related to the fact that he was discharged by that 
employer before the employer can “not pay” the benefit.  Because the word 
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“compensation” is broader than “temporary total disability,” the restriction is for 
temporary total disability.  It seemed to Nevada Attorney for Injured Workers 
(NAIW) attorneys that there simply is no correlation between a discharge by the 
employer and the employer having any right to stop medical benefits.  Since 
Mr. Ross and Mr. Ostrovsky disagreed with the way I had it written in the 
original bill, I agreed to delete section 5, subsection 1(c), from A.B. 24.   
 
Section 5, subsection 3, would remain the same, therefore clarifying that only 
temporary total disability could be stopped if the worker is discharged for 
misconduct. 
 
Section 6 I agreed to remove from the bill. 
 
Section 7, as I stated, is addressed in a different way by adding to section 1. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Ms. Leeder, what was the purpose of section 6? 
 
Nancyann Leeder: 
“Primary” is not a word that doctors use ordinarily, and in workers’ 
compensation, when you need to prove a case, you need medical testimony.  
Doctors can easily determine what is a “contributing” cause, and “substantial” 
basically means material, a realistic cause.  I felt that “substantial contributing” 
made more sense, and it is already in use in NRS 616C.175.  That is the reason 
I put it in originally. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
What was the opposition? 
 
Nancyann Leeder: 
The insurer likes the word “primary.” 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
We will find out because we have them here. 
 
Assemblyman Anderson: 
If an injured worker has a potential claim and is terminated from his place of 
employment for cause, are you saying he cannot make a claim on an injury? 
 
Nancyann Leeder: 
There is a different statute that says, if you are laid off before you make the 
claim but after you have the injury, you have a more difficult proof.  You can 
still prove your case.  The situation that I am addressing in the bill is different.  
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If your case is accepted and you are entitled to temporary total disability, but 
the doctor says you can work (if in fact your injury employer can put you back 
to work within the restrictions that the treating physician gives), then the 
employer can refuse not only to put you back to work, but also refuse to pay 
you temporary total disability if you have been discharged for misconduct. 
 
Assemblyman Anderson: 
Nevada being an “at will” state leads me to be concerned about this element.  If 
an employee has an injury and the doctor believes it would be permissible for 
him to return to work, there is nothing to protect him from being let go, even 
though he has an injury.  That issue would have to be resolved, if the injury was 
work related, even though he is no longer employed by the company. 
 
Nancyann Leeder: 
In the current climate, we have been getting an increasing number of calls from 
terminated employees who have filed claims for workers’ compensation.  We 
have to let them know there is not anything they can do.  Does that address 
your question? 
 
Assemblyman Anderson: 
It reflects the reality of the current phone calls that I get also.  How is this 
helping the injured worker?  
 
Nancyann Leeder:   
The word compensation, which existed in the statute before, encompasses 
more than temporary total disability.  We were trying to limit the result of a 
discharge to only temporary total disability because we received some cases 
where the person is discharged and then is refused medical care.  We are trying 
to at least get the medical care.   
 
Chairman Conklin: 
On page 3 of the bill, section 2, subsection 2, if an action goes to district court 
or the Supreme Court, we show that they must make a determination in 
30 days.  Is it typical of the court to not provide a time frame? 
 
Nancyann Leeder:   
Usually, the court does not provide a specific time frame, but it assumes a 
reasonable time frame, which is 30 days.  We have many cases where the 
determination is not made at all. 
 
Assemblyman Goedhart: 
Whether it is temporary or permanent partial disability, it is my understanding 
that the workers’ compensation policy under which that company operates, and 
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under which it employed that worker, will still pay for the lost wages and the 
nature of the injury.   
 
Nancyann Leeder: 
Yes, they are supposed to. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
It appears from the amendment that you have not changed section 5 from the 
bill at all.  Is that correct? 
 
Nancyann Leeder: 
No.  The reason it looks that way is the brackets are so small.  In the amended 
version, the “and” in the second line in subsection 1(b) comes out, and the 
entire subsection 1(c) is deleted.   
 
Chairman Conklin: 
That is significant. 
 
Nancyann Leeder: 
The insertion is “for temporary total disability” at the top.  Subsection 3 would 
remain the same as in the bill, which says, ”An insurer may not deny any 
compensation pursuant to this section except for compensation for temporary 
total disability pursuant to subsection 1.” 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Are there any other questions? 
 
Bob Ostrovsky, representing Employers Insurance Group, Reno, Nevada: 
We are here in support of the amended version of A.B. 24.  However, prior to 
the hearing, I provided Ms. Leeder with some changes in the wording to clarify 
the language.  I am hoping that, in the next couple of days, we can work on 
that language together. 
 
In section 5, we ask that subsection 1(c) be removed because it appears that it 
created a new right for injured workers to return to a position that no longer 
exists.  If a worker has been laid off, it would not be considered a misconduct 
discharge, which the original language in the statue applied to.  I agreed with 
Nancyann Leeder that the way the original statue was drafted was that all 
compensation could be cut off.  This is not what we intended and was not my 
original language.   
 
There are others here today that have larger concerns about section 5, as does 
Assemblyman Anderson about whether it is appropriate for it to be in the 



Assembly Committee on Commerce and Labor 
February 9, 2009 
Page 15 
 
statutes to start with.  There is general agreement that, if an employee is 
injured on the job, the employee becomes entitled to certain benefits under the 
statute, regardless of misconduct.  The employer’s insurance policy, whether 
self-insured or insured, is going to pay to make that employee whole.  As 
Assemblyman Goedhart pointed out, the employer is responsible for that 
employee.  The question arises when the employee is eligible to return to work 
and there is no job available, either due to misconduct or, in the case of 
subsection 1(c), because the job was eliminated.  The new language limits what 
can happen to a claimant in these circumstances.  We agree that this section 
needs to be repaired.   
 
We had a long discussion regarding reopening claims.  We created a policy that 
certain standards apply within the first year of a claim closure.  Other standards 
would apply after the first year of a claim closure.  We see “substantial 
contributing” as being a much lesser standard than “primary.”  There is no legal 
definition of primary, so we used it as a negotiated word at the time.  We feel 
that it should be somewhat difficult to reopen a claim.  We are the only state 
that has lifetime reopening benefits.  We should be careful that the extent to 
which we allow claims to be reopened does not increase costs beyond what 
would be reasonable for employers.  This Legislature has to balance out the 
rights of an injured worker, which is not an easy thing to do. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Mr. Ross, do you have anything to add? 
 
George A. Ross, representing Nevada Self Insurers Association, Las Vegas, 

Nevada: 
In section 2, subsection 2, Ms. Leeder was concerned that some insurers would 
drag things out forever.  We ask that we have more time since sometimes it 
takes time to get the information.   
 
The language that Ms. Leeder put at the end of section 3, subsection 4, which 
says that the insured needs to give a reason for a change of physician, is a dual 
protection: for the employee and the employer.  One of the bases for our 
workers’ compensation system is to have a set of doctors that are used to 
working with work-related injuries. 
 
In section 6, we feel that the word “substantial” could be interpreted to make it 
much easier for a large number of reopenings. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Are there any questions at this time regarding the amendment?  There are none.  
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Nancyann Leeder: 
I neglected to point out that section 9 repeals the statute, which is void, 
because it was not passed timely within the federal statutes.  It repeals the 
offset that looks as if it exists, but really does not exist because the federal 
government can reduce social security payments based on workers’ 
compensation payments, but the state cannot reduce workers’ compensation 
payments based on social security payments.  
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Thank you for that clarification.  Does anyone in favor of the original bill wish to 
testify? 
 
Danny Thompson, Executive Secretary-Treasurer, Nevada State American 

Federation of Labor-Congress of Industrial Organizations, 
Henderson, Nevada: 

I come here today to support the original bill in its original form.  You have 
heard all the testimony regarding section 5, but I can tell you that our economy 
continues to worsen, with unemployment at 9.2 percent or higher, and it is 
getting worse every day. 
 
In section 5, we do not believe that there is any connection between whether or 
not someone was fired for cause and whether their claim is denied.  If you have 
a workers’ compensation claim, it stands on its own merit. 
 
In section 6, the word “primary” cause has become an automatic denial.  We 
supported changing the language to a “substantial contributing” cause, which 
doctors seem to understand better.   
 
In section 7, we support leaving the bill as it is.  In order to reopen a claim for a 
permanent partial disability, the way the law is today, the claimant has to prove 
by a preponderance of the evidence that, at the time the case was closed, the 
claimant was qualified to be scheduled for an evaluation and that the insurer 
violated NRS 616D.120.  This is the benefit penalty provision, which was put in 
the law when the injured worker lost the ability to have a bad faith lawsuit.  We 
support removing the reference in subsection 1(c), and in subsection 2.  Not 
having been at these meetings, we are willing to sit down with these parties 
and discuss this with them. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Are there any questions? 
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Jack Jeffrey, representing Laborers International Union of North America Local 

872, Las Vegas, Nevada: 
I agree with the statements made by Mr. Thompson.  Section 5 originated from 
a previous workers’ compensation case.  A convenience store worker had been 
injured and was off on temporary total disability.  He was then accused of 
selling alcohol to a minor and was terminated.  He was notified, for that reason, 
that his workers’ compensation claim was terminated.  If a person is 
legitimately injured on the job, there is no reason to cut off benefits for any kind 
of misconduct or layoff.  A legitimate injury is a legitimate injury.  If it happens 
on the job, they should be entitled to the full benefits under the law, including 
medical care and compensation.  If the worker did something to cause his own 
injury, that is a different situation.   
 
Assemblyman Goedhart: 
If an employee is back at work on temporary, light duty from an injury and is 
then terminated for stealing, would he still be eligible for all of his compensation 
on a job he was terminated from for good cause? 
 
Jack Jeffrey:   
I believe he would be because light duty is an incentive for the employer to put 
a person back to work and keep workers’ compensation cost low.  Both labor 
and management support that.  The challenge is, it is too easy for people to 
abuse it.  I think we should treat injured workers the same way we treated them 
ten years ago.   
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Is there anyone in Carson City or Las Vegas to testify in support of this bill?  
There are none. 
 
Craig Michie, Private Citizen, Henderson, Nevada:  
Why should a “post” event impact the liability of a prior, legitimate loss 
experience?  I am amazed that Ms. Leeder could not make any correlation 
between the number of workers’ compensation claims and subsequent 
terminations from work for a particular cause.  I am surprised that we are not 
finding a way to collect that data.   
 
I have a concern on page 3 of the bill, lines 40-41, where it says “shall pay 
upon order of the Administrator an additional amount equal to three times the 
amount specified in the order….”  We would like to see that not have any caps, 
we would like to have bad faith language brought back into NRS Chapter 616C.  
Bad faith is rampant in this environment.  There is no responsible remedy to 
these problems.  Workers’ compensation is not something we can continually 
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pass around.  There is an extremely important component of timeliness that is 
not being implemented. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Is there anyone who is neutral that wishes to speak?   
 
Donald E. Jayne, representing Public Agency Compensation Trust, Carson City, 

Nevada: 
I am testifying in favor of the bill as amended. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Are there other parties wishing to testify for the neutral position?  None.  
Opposed, please testify. 
  
Charles R. Nort, representing Exber Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada, and Young Electric 

Sign Co., Salt Lake City, Utah: 
My concern with the amendment in section 2 is that we do not want to 
circumvent the due process and appeal rights of the affected party.  The way it 
is written, you must render a new determination within 30 days after the day 
you “order.”  It is unclear how to proceed if we undertake an appeal within the 
30 day period and obtain a motion for stay. 
 
I do not feel the language in section 3, subsection 4, is clear regarding whether 
the approval must be granted in ten days. 
 
I have a concern with section 5, subsection 3, where they are trying to clarify 
compensation for temporary total disability and/or temporary partial disability.  
Under no circumstance, in an accepted claim can you deny permanent partial 
disability, regardless of who the employer is.  If the claim comes to a medical 
conclusion and you, the claimant, have probability of residual impairment, you 
must schedule a rating exam. 
 
Chairman Conklin: 
Are there any questions?  We will close the hearing on A.B. 24.  There are 
several interested parties who need to work on this bill.  There may be other 
bills that relate to workers’ compensation that will come before this Committee.  
I have concerns about the workers’ compensation program’s fairness to the 
injured worker.  As Chairman of this Committee, I am more than happy to sit 
with those parties. 
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We have a joint hearing with Senate Commerce and Labor on Wednesday on 
foreclosures.  On Friday, we will meet for 15 minutes following the adjournment 
of the floor meeting.  
 
We are adjourned at [3:09 p.m.]. 
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